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for application. 

1-6. 

M i nutes : 

Chairman Nathe: opened the hearing on HB 1426. 

Representative Vickie Stei ner District 37: Introduced HB 1426. (1 :00-3:13) (See 
(Attachment #1 ). 

Chairman Nathe: So you went from $500,000 dollars to $100,000 dollars? Where is that 
in the bill? 

Representative Stei ner: Page 2, and the threshold for bidding construction on a public 
improvement is $100,000. If you updated the $100,000 number it would have been 
$800,000. 

Rep. Koppleman :  Do you know when these limits were set? 

Representative Steiner: I am being told 1997. 

Rep. Koppleman : It makes sense you would contend to adjust those costs. 

Representative Stei ner: Correct. 

Representative Wayne Trottier: District 19 in support of HB 1426(4:00-9:43) (See 
Attachment #2). 

Representative Devlin : District 43, in support of HB 1426. I believe this is a local control 
issue and I firmly believe this bill should pass. (9:56) 
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Blake Crosby: Executive Director of the North Dakota League of Cities. In support of HB 
1426. (See attachment #3). 

Chairman Nathe : Any other support of HB 1426? None. Any opposition on HB 1426? 

Wayne Kern: Director of the North Dakota Department of Health's Division of Municipal 
Facilities. In opposition to HB 1426. (11 :00- 19:00) (See Attachment #4) 

Rep. Zubke: In the second bullet point and the fifth bullet point, you say many times 
communities realize that getting their submittal into approval conditions is beyond there 
expertise and hire an engineer and this is inefficient and causes delays, then you mention 
you have experienced an increase from 150 to 400 projects nearly all these projects were 
prepared by engineers, thus enabling timely review and approval , I cannot connect those 
two, please explain this. 

Wayne Kern: I think the key word is occasionally, we do not often receive plans that are 
not prepared by an engineer, we do spend considerable time on those that are not 
prepared by and engineer than a large project that has been. 

Rep. Koppleman :  Do you think it is appropriate that when construction didn't need 
engineering in an earlier date, that it would still not need an engineer? 

Wayne Kern: That is a multifaceted question, we do have projects that can have 
significant safety and health consequences that are under $100,000. Maybe it's time to be 
looking not so much at the money as to looking at the kinds of projects and their 
implications. I do think it would be a task worth an interim study. 

Rep. Olson :  Can you point to the code that requires that they consult with the 
Department of Public health? 

Wayne Kern: I don't have that but I can get that to you. The authority is for that is under 
the state Health Officer. 

Rep. Hunskor: You indicated you get projects that haven't been completed by an 
engineer, are these projects faulty because they had no engineer? 

Wayne Kern: Occasionally we get question and also from the contractor, I can't recall a 
substandard project but we continue to work hard to try to make that not happen. 

Rep. Hunskor: So raising it from $100,000 to $500,000 does create more problems 
then? 

Wayne Kern:  Yes. 

Rep. Olson : Have you had problems with a project that had an engineer? 

Wayne Kern: No profession is perfect, that is a possibility. 
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Rick Tonder: NOUS Director of Facilities Planning, written testimony in opposition to HB 
1426. (See Attachment # 5). 

Bonnie Staiger: representing the American Council of Engineering Companies and 
American Institute of Architects) in opposition to HB 1426. (26:00-31 :58) (See 
Attachment# 6). Provided language for an amendment. 

Chairman Nathe: Was that amendment you suggested here was that put on any other bill? 

Bonnie Staiger: I t  was put on HB 1182. 

Rep. Olson: Do you know when the threshold was set? 

Bonnie Staiger: I believe it was 1997 too. 

John Boyle: Director of Facility Management. In opposition to HB 1426. I t  was HB 1182 
that the full house passed last week that would call for an interim study and we would 
prefer that would you not pass this and that would go to the Senate and pass and we can 
work this out during the interim. 

Chairman Nathe: Closed the hearing on HB 1426. 
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Relating to approval of school construction projects by the superintendent of public 
instruction and bids and plans and specifications for public improvements; and to provide 
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M i nutes : 

Chairman Nathe: reopened the hearing on HB 1426. This bill has to do with school 
construction projects. HB 1182 there was a study and that bill was passed on the floor and 
on to the Senate. 

Rep. Meier: The study was placed in HB 1182. So with that on HB 1426 I would 
move to amend the bill from $500,000 dollars to $150,000 dollars. 

Rep. Mock : seconded. In Sections 1 ,2 and 3. 

Rep. Meier :  Yes. When you look back in 1997 is when we initially had placed it at 
$100.000 dollars and I think $150,000 dollars would be pretty workable. It is not that much 
of an increase and when you look at tax payers dollars it probably could work. I did visit 
with the bill sponsor as well and she thought that was workable as well. 

Rep. Kelsh: We have had to bills on political subs and we tried millions, we tried $500,000 
dollars, we tried $150,000 dollars and none of them worked. One got turned into a study. 
I would like to have a study done on this school construction too. I don't know if the 
language on HB 1182 includes schools or not. I would go against the amendment and 
have a study. My fear is if this bill doesn't get passed the schools will never get studied. I 
will probably go against the motion and put a study on here. 

Rep. Meier: We could amend this to $ 150,000 dollars and do a study as well. If that is 
what the committee wanted. 
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Chairman Nathe: I would agree with Rep. Kelsh, if you look at the testimony two 
Engineering Institutions would like to see a study as well during the interim. This issue 
needs to be studied more and thoroughly before we get to the dollar amounts. I like HB 
1182 that we passed. I will oppose the amendment. 

Rep. Kelsh:By raising the threshold it may leave out a safety issue. Here we are dealing 
with children and that is a big issue to me. They still would have to have an engineer at 
the lower figure but not to the higher figure. This might be beat on the floor and it wouldn't 
have schools in the study. If the bill gets defeated then the study would too. 

Chairman Nathe: If this bill passes we are looking at projects that can take off without 
engineering included. Industry would like to take their time and come up with a good 
solution. 

Rep. Schreiber Beck: I concur with Rep. Kelsh, I think the study can move away from 
the strict bid threshold and look at bids being required based on components of the project 
as listed in testimony against the bill by Blake Crosby. That language could be included. 

Rep. Olson: We had a bill on the floor very similar to this, HB 1407, that narrowly was 
defeated. As I understand the reason that failed is because it had raised the bidding 
threshold to $500,000 dollars as well. This bill doesn't do that, it only raises the 
engineering threshold. The purpose is to save the tax payer money. As we heard from 
Blake Crosby, he felt the local leadership should be able to decide when engineering is 
needed and when it isn't needed. With regards to the amendment of $150,000, I think that 
would pass, it is not out of line, and that is adjusted for inflation from 1997. 

Rep. Rohr: What bill you were referring to that we did a study on? 

Chairman Nathe : HB 1182 passed the house. It was turned into a study. 

A Roll Call Vote was taken. Yes: 8 No: 5 Absent: 0. Motion Carried to amend. 

Chairman Nathe: I see this bill as a duplicate. When I see industry wants to study this 
more before moving forward, I think that means a lot. 

Rep. Kelsh: To make it clear it does include the bidding process on the construction.? 

Chairman Nathe: Yes. 

Rep. Mock: I supported the amendment because I do think it is responsible to lower that 
threshold, but I do need to side with the concern that we do need a study. I will resist a do 
pass. 

Rep. Zubke: Do Pass as Amended on HB 1426 as amended. 
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Rep. Koppleman: Seconded. Just to be clear the amendment changed line 12 and 18 
on page 1 from $500,000 dollars to $150,000 dollars and also on line 4 on page 2. But did 
not do anything on page 2 line 2 ? 

Chairman Nathe: No, it would not change line 2 on page 2. 

A Roll Call Vote was taken. Yes: 7 No: 6 Absent: 0. Motion carried. 

Rep. Meier: Will carry the bill. 
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Adopted by the Education Committee 

February 9, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1426 

Page 1, line 12, remove the overstrike over "eRe" 

Page 1, line 12, remove "five" 

Page 1, line 12, after "hundred" insert "fifty" 

Page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over "eRe" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "five" 

Page 1, line 18, after "hundred" insert "fifty" 

Page 2, line 4, remove the overstrike over "eRe" 

Page 2, line 4, remove ''five" 

Page 2, line 4, after "hundred" insert ''fifty" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0911.01001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1426: Education Committee (Rep. Nathe, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1426 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 12, remove the overstrike over "GA-e" 

Page 1, line 12, remove "five" 

Page 1, line 12, after "hundred" insert "fifty" 

Page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over "GA-e" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "five" 

Page 1, line 18, after "hundred" insert "fifty" 

Page 2, line 4, remove the overstrike over "GA-e" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "five" 

Page 2, line 4, after "hundred" insert "fifty" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

INTIAL HEARING 
Relating to approval of school construction projects by the superintendent of public 
instruction 

Mi nutes : 

Chairman Flakoll called the committee to order at 11 :45am with all committee members 
present. 

--SUPPORT--

Chairman Flakoll: I will note that we have testimony from Rick Tonder, NOUS Director of 
Facilities Planning (see attachment #1) 

Blake Crosby, Executive Director of the ND League of Cities (see attachment #2) 

(5:30) Vicky Stei ner, District 37 Representative (see attachment #3) 
Representative Steiner: The reason for introducing this bill was that there was an original 
bill that the House heard. It was defeated, but we still had time to put bills in. The House 
Education committee adjusted the number slightly for the years and the original bill 
sponsors are in the room and will be talking about that. There was a feeling that in some 
cases, it may be costing property tax payers if we leave that $100,000 number hard in code 
for years. I appreciate that the League of Cities has taken a look at how you move these 
numbers. I think beyond this bill, we should keep our eyes open for other hard numbers 
that we wish to cross in code and try to adjust them as they go so that we don't get locked 
into a number that may be in there for 20-30 years. I don't have concern about the 
amendments. I would appreciate the study on it. In fact if you want to expand the study to 
look at all hard numbers in code, that would be a great idea. Perhaps there are other 
numbers that should be addressed. 
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(8:35) Wayne Trottier, District 19 Representative 
Representative Trottier: I am here to endorse this bill. We had heard a bill with a different 
number on it. It came through the committee on the House side with $500,000 on 
engineering architect limits, and the same for bidding. It passed in the committee 13-0 do 
not pass, passed on the floor then reconsidered the next day and failed. The problem was 
in the bidding procedure numbers. I think if we had left that at $100,000, it would have 
stood a chance. This is common sense and saving the public entities money from 
unnecessary costs. This bill raises the limit from $100,000 to $150,000. However keep in 
mind this does not say that if you have a $25,000 project, you can't have an engineer or 
architect and bidding can be at whatever limit under $100,000. It doesn't restrict them. 
These are elected officials. The people put their trust in them like they do us. A bus barn 
may be $300,000, and the average engineering architect fee is about 15%. That is $45,000 
that that entity would save by not having an engineer on it, and they could go to Menards 
and buy pre-engineered materials. There are other issues I understand that, but I think we 
need to leave this up for the locals. If there is an idea for an amendment, I would like to see 
the bidding left at $100,000 and the engineers and architects up to $500,000. 

Chairman Flakoll: How do we ensure that they don't have two projects of $125,000 that 
are similar to one another, such as roofing and installation in the same building? 
Representative Trottier: It would be wise for the school district to split them. 
Chairman Flakoll: They can $125,000 us to death. They can $75,000 us to death in the 
current legislation. 
Representative Trottier: Right. I don't have an answer for that, but for instance if you want 
to resurface one block in your town, it is about $100,000 dollars. In Northwood, we had to 
do about 5-6 blocks, so either we do a short block each year or we pay the 15% in 
engineering fees for 5 blocks. At $500,000 that was $75,000 that would have almost 
covered one block. There are ways around the system and I understand that; that is 
government. 

(13:10) Aaron Birst, ND Association Counties 

Birst: Counties have 92 statues that require us to bid. This bill does not address all of 
them. An absurd example is county bridges. Bridges are required to be bid for $30,000, and 
if you find a bridge for $30,000 I would be happy to sell it to you. In this bill, we are 
suggesting a modest increase. We certainly support HB 1182 which contains the study 
provision, and if you want to amend in a study provision in this bill as well, that is fine. The 
bidding is expensive because of the publication requirements. Usually it is three weeks. We 
would need to print in our paper a three week publication requirement for the bidding which 
does have expenses to the counties. I would concede that public safety is paramount. You 
should have an engineer or architect if there is some sort of safety component. Using 
arbitrary numbers to do safety is awkward, so maybe that is something we can work on in 
the study. If you wanted to do a carpeting project or put up a steel shed which don't really 
have any safety components, $150,000 is clearly not that big of an increase. It has been 
$100,000 since 1997 and needs revising. 
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--OPPOSITION--

(16:45) Bon n ie Staiger, ACEC and AIA Representative (see attachment #4) 

(22:35) Senator Schaible: We are currently at a $100,000 threshold. At that threshold with 
the safety, have we seen any safety issues? 
Staiger: I am unaware of any at this time. 

Senator Davison: Have these organizations brought bills forward in the past bienniums in 
order to reduce the threshold of $100,000? 
Staiger: No we have not. 
Senator Davison: This has been in place since 1997 or before, correct? 
Staiger: Correct and it was reaffirmed in 2007. 
Senator Davison: Over the last 20 years or so, at 3-4% inflation, wouldn't you think the 
increase would be for similar projects? This seems reasonable to me. 
Staiger: Your job description is to vote for this. We are consistently proposing that there 
may be other commodities outside of dollars that may better serve the procurement 
process. I also want to point out that architecture and engineering fees are nowhere near 
15%, not even half of that. A bus barn is an exempt project that would not require bidding. 
Chairman Flakoll: You would acknowledge that the inflationary costs of construction have 
gone up dramatically in the last few years? 
Staiger: Yes I think that is reasonable, but there are other factors that can make this 
process much simpler. 
Chairman Flakoll: Would your organization oppose any increase? 
Staiger: We are not speaking specifically to a dollar amount but rather propose the interim 
study and not take a piecemeal or a dart method to all of these 8 bills that came forward. It 
was a position that made it possible for us to simplify the legislative process and get to the 
interim. 

*Clarified responses from Bonnie Staiger emailed to committee after hearing 
(see attachment #6) 

(27:40) Wayne Kern, Director of the ND Department of Health's Division of Municipal 
Facilities (see attachment #5) 
Kern: It is important to note that this bill addresses only the threshold for design services, 
not bidding. 

(34:25) Senator Schai ble: Of this 400 projects we had, how many of those are in the 
$150,000 range? 
Kern: I do not have specific numbers, but typically we have projects that can range from 
$50,000 all the way up to millions of dollars. 
Senator Schai ble: Do you have a guess? Is it 10 or 20% that would be under the $150,000 
range? 
Kern: That is a fair statement. The majority of the projects are over the current threshold of 
$100,000. In our business/ it is possible for particularly small communities to do a lot of 
work with that money. For example they could do a block of water and sewer or a small rest 
station project. I don't want to get too hung up on monetary value, but keep in mind we are 
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talking about projects that are complex and if not designed and constructed properly, they 
can end up with genuine public health safety issues. 

Chairman Flakoll: I don't understand the second bullet point on page 1. Whose standpoint 
is that from? 
Kern: If we have engineer involvement up front and it clearly shows the plans and 
specifications in a format that proves design standards are met, it saves us considerable 
time in reviewing and approving them. Sometimes we get projects from non-engineers in 
which we are obligated to go back with a reiterative process, so that we can feel 
comfortable in approving it. Sometimes we simply cannot get to a point in a community 
where they are able to provide the kind of information that is needed for our standards. We 
have never rejected a project; however we've been on the edge in terms of conflict of 
interest of how far we've had to go to get that project in a form that can actually be 
approved. 
Chairman Flakoll: I think the capitol building is full of violations of code. Who's checking 
those things, is that going through your office? 
Kern: No we deal with water works, but it is neces.sary to have some entity that knows what 
the standards are to be looking at that. As minor as it may sound, you could have some 
things that represent genuine public health safety health considerations, but on the contrary 
it may be a simple code violation that can result in liability and risk issues for the owner. 

Senator Davison: You stated that many entities hire engineers anyway. If you say it is not 
your job to help them prepare the projects then why are you doing that? At some point in 
time wouldn't you request that they hire someone to aid them in their project? 
Kern: We have always tried to be as assistant-oriented as possible. We work with 
communities so we don't have to get to the point where it has to be rejected. What typically 
happens is we realize we don't know enough, so we have to obtain design services for it. 

(41) Bob Marthaller with the Department of Public Instruction was called to the podium 
Chairman Flakoll: When did you begin your job with the Department of Public Instruction? 
Marthaller: I've been with the Department for about 8 years. 

Marthaller: In terms of as it applies to school districts, we think section 1 and 3 of the 
current bill is a good idea for districts. Section 1 only applies to school districts. It is that 
threshold we are talking about that is our responsibility as a Department to approve those 
projects. Currently any project over $100,000, the school district needs to seek in security 
Department of Public Instruction approval. It is a good idea to raise it to $150,000. Costs of 
even small projects today are escalated to about 20-40%. School districts that for example 
are moving or replacing walls or windows will easily approach $100-150,000. Local school 
districts can best make those determinations with smaller projects such as these. A school 
district project still has to meet all of the safety standards such as fire, electrical and 
plumbing codes. There is some level of safety that can be assured just by those codes. In 
the last couple of years, we have approved basic, somewhat maintenance $130-150,000 
projects. Raising the threshold is a good idea. 
With section 3 in terms of what school districts need to meet, the bidding requirement is not 
changing. They still have to bid projects that are $100,000 or greater. That is a good idea. It 
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gives an opportunity for smaller contractors to be able to bid and compete for those kinds of 
projects within their own community. Raising the threshold for securing the architect and 
engineer specifications from $100-150,000 as it applies to school districts for smaller 
projects, is appropriate. It doesn't seem that engineering or architect drawings are required 
for those projects. In that case it would save a school district those fees for the smaller 
projects. 

Chairman Flakoll: In the determination of the threshold, does that include A&E or FF&E 
fees? 
Marthaller: No it does not. 
Chairman Flakoll: I think it was 2005 or 2007 that we changed it from $25,000 in a 
conference committee on HB 1154? 
Marthaller: Since I've been here in the business, the construction approval from the 
Department of Public Instruction point of view has been $25,000 at one point. Then it went 
to $40,000. Senator Rust was involved. It was at that point in which we raised the threshold 
for construction approval in terms of school construction to $100,000. 
Chairman Flakoll: There was differing reports earlier today. 
Marthaller: It is important to note that section one applies to school districts and the 
Department of Public Instruction requirement. Other numbers I cannot speak to. 
Chairman Flakoll: At that time it seemed like the discussions about the thresholds were 
more about schools that should be consolidating instead of putting money into a bad 
building that requires department approval. 
Marthaller: In the conversations that I have been involved in since about 2008, I don't 
recall consolidation or reorganization was part of increasing the thresholds. I can say as a 
former superintendent that there has certainly been conversation about reorganization and 
looking at school districts and how they can better cooperate and share buildings, etc. 

Vice Chairman Rust: This was in 2009. As I recall the reason for going to the $100,000 for 
bidding was to get to the same number that was needed for architectural fees. 
Marthaller: Correct. 

Chairman Flakoll closes the hearing on HB 1426. 
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ACTION 

Mi nutes : 

Vice Chairman Rust motions for a DO PASS 
Senator Davison seconds. 

No attachments 

Chairman Flakoll: There are no amendments to this one. 
Vice Chairman Rust: Mr. Marthaller is not opposed to this legislation. 

A vote was taken:  6 yays, 0 nays, 0 absent 
The motions carries. 

Senator Davison will carry the bill. 
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Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

� Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 
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D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Vice Chairman Rust Seconded By Senator Davison 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Flakoll x Senator Marcellais x 
Vice Chai rman Rust x Senator Oban x 
Senator Davison x 
Senator Schaible x 
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Good afternoon, Mr. Chai rman N athe and Mem bers of E d u cation Com m ittee, 

My name is Vicky Steiner, State Representative for District 37, Dickinson. 

This b i l l , 1426, may look fa m i l i a r. We voted on a s imi lar b i l l , 1407 on the floor of the house and 

there was a good d e bate on how the b i l l  might be crafte d .  That b i l l  was d efeated but I 've 

changed u p  a few things to see if the H ouse might re-consider the concept. 

This b i l l ,  1426, contains some of the argu ments of the floor. I bel ieve it's a good concept for 

lowering property tax by u pd ating a num ber that's been eroded by t ime.  

You ' l l  hear from the specia l  interests again about protecting thei r  m arket sha re . A bus b a rn 

from d e a l ers can be pre-engineere d .  Why spend money for a d ditional engineering on a p roject 

if it's a lready been d one. This gives some para meters to the l ocal  e lected offic ia ls .  One of the 

a rgum ents was pu b l ic  safety. The scare tactic that a local  offici a l  wou l d  b u i l d  onto the state 

cap itol without p roper d esign is  abso l ute rid icu lousness on the p a rt of the lobbyists. 

Loca l e lected offic ia ls  a re j ust as concerned about safety as we are. If they b e l i eve they need to 

spend m oney on a d d itiona l engineering and or an a rchitect, they can. They've been elected 

j ust l i ke us .  

We can't l eave nu m bers to ride in our  law books becau se it starts to cost u s  as  taxpayers. It 's 

s i m p ly com mon sense to u pd ate the num ber of $100,000. I 've sta rted it  at  $500,000. The 

lob byists wi l l  want the nu m b e r  m u ch lower but we need to u pd ate that num ber as ti me goes 

on. 

HB 1047 had $500,000 in the b i d d ing process. I 've lowered that back to $100,000. 

Again, this gives loca l offic ia ls  the chance to m ake thei r  own decis ion on whether an engineer 

and a rchitect m i ght be hired at certa in levels .  

Without this b i l l  becom ing law, the specia l  interests wi l l  possib l y  earn $75,000 on p u b l ic 

projects of $500,000 d epending on the percentage they req u i re .  I q uestion if that cost is 

j u stified in every situati on. I completely understand they are hired to p rotect thei r  c l ient's 

pocketbook. We a lso need to protect the taxpayer's pocketbook. 

We need to be vigi l ant on how we as  legislators i m pact local  property tax so we sho u l d  not 

m andate this cost b ased on an o utdated num ber. 

Thank you M r. Chairman and m e mbers of the comm ittee for you r  consideration of this b i l l .  



Good afternoon Chairman Nathe and members of education committee. 

My name is Wayne Trottier, representing district 19 in eastern central ND, and runs from Hoople/Grafton area on 

the north and Northwood on the south. 

Thanks to Rep Steiner for bringing back a version of HB 1407, which was passed and defeated. 

That bill, HB 1407, had $500,000 eng/arch and $500,000 on bidding limits. Many of the red votes told me that 

they voted red because they felt the $500,000 limit on bidding was too high. Maybe this is right, but either of 

these limits do not say you can't have an engineer or offer the bid process if they are lower than amounts in the 

bill. It really goes back to letting the local elected officials make the decision. They, like us, are elected and the 

voters have put their faith and trust in them and us. 

I have visited with Walsh, Grand Forks, Trail annd Williams county commissioners, cities of Mayville, Northwood, 

Larimore, Grafton and Cavalier and all have had some sort of disagreement or problem with a project and the 

design and final settlement. One example I will share with you is my hometown of Northwood, where a street 

project, where part of the approximate 6 blocks of rebuilding a paved street. At the final one block, there were ag 
I 

storage buildings on both sides of the street. The engineer was warned to not make the street elevation too high, 

so that water would not drain into the buildings. The contractor told the city during the process, that he felt the 

street was going to be a few inches too high. The engineer said it would be ok. When the project was completed, 

all those that would be affected, said you could see the pavement was too high. There was $85,000 held at the 

completion, until the engineer and the contractor corrected the problem. Incidentally, the engineer was present 

for the entire project. Finally, in the end, the city attorney said by the time they went to court, court fees, attorney 

fees, expert testimony would probably eat up the entire amount, and suggested to just pay the engineer and 

contractor's final fees. 

I have more from all the cities, that I talked to, but will not give that long a testimony. By the way, most of the 

complaints, were of street projects. 

In the end, please give our political subs a chance to make their own decisions. They again, are elected by the 

people. I believe this could amount to millions of dollars saved for our citizens. 

I appreciate your time and attention, and would attempt to answer any questions you may have. 

Thank you Mr chairman and members of the education committee 
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CHAIRMAN NATH E AN D M E M BERS OF  TH E COM M ITIEE 

For the record my n a m e  is  B lake Crosby. I a m  the Executive Di rector of  the North 

Da kota League of Cit ies representing the 357 c it ies across the State . 

H B  1426 i n  one  of a se ries of b i l l s  ( H B  1077, H B  1182, and  SB  2246) i ntroduced 

hav ing to do  with b id  th resholds fo r pub l i c  works and pub l ic  improvement 

construct ion .  Those b i l l s  have suggested thresholds ra ngi ng from $150,000 to $1 

m i l l i on .  We have hea rd m uch testimony on  the pub l ic safety aspect a nd 

jeopa rd i z ing of the tax payer's do l l a rs if the threshold were to be i ncreased 

beyond  some a mou nt. And, there is  va l id ity i n  the pub l i c  safety concern .  

However, re lative to  protection of  the  tax  payer's do l l a rs, I be l ieve that  loca l ly 

e lected offi cia ls act i n  the best i nte rest of the i r  city and  they shou ld  be trusted 

u nt i l  p roven othe rwise .  But, rather tha n  get i nto a protracted a rgument on the 

need fo r a h igher  thresho ld,  I have a suggestion .  

B id  thresho lds  i n here ntly create confl i ct .  They a re a cookie-cutter, one-s ize-fits­

a l l  a nswer. Based on the n u mber of sess ions where bid threshold s  conti nue  to 

come to the fo refront; there a re obvious ly some prob lems i n  that conce pt. 

I wou ld  reco m mend that th is  committee request a n  i nte ri m study on  movi ng 

away from strict b id th resho lds  a nd look at bids be ing requ i red based on 

com ponents of the p roject such as  pub l i c  safety, structu ra l i ntegrity, pub l i c  

access, p u b l ic  hea lth, potenti a l  l i ab i l ity, other  crit ica l compone nts a nd yes, cost of 

the project. To keep com ing back session afte r session and  a rgu ing a bout a n  

a rb itra ry th resho ld  i s  not a prudent u se of taxpayer's do l l a rs .  

On  beha lf of  the North Da kota League of  Cities, I wou ld  ask  for a Do-Pass on 

HB 1426 . 

THAN K YOU FOR YOU R  TIM E AND CONS IDERATION .  I w i l l  try to a nswer  a ny 

questions .  
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Testimony 

House Bill 1426 

House Education Committee 

February 3, 2015; 2:00 p.m. 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairman Nathe and members of the House Education 
Committee. My name is Wayne Kern. I am Director of the North Dakota 
Department of Health's Division of Municipal Facilities, which is part of the 
Environmental Health Section. I am here to provide testimony in opposition to 
Sections 2 and 3 of House Bill 1426. 

Under current state law, public works and public improvement projects costing 
over $100,000 cannot proceed to construction without engineer-prepared plans 
and specifications. Sections 2 and 3 of House Bill 1426 propose to increase this 
threshold amount to $500,000. If House Bill 1426 is enacted, the state and its 
political subdivisions would be allowed to undertake projects up to $500,000 
without engineer-prepared plans and specifications. 

The Department of Health opposes Sections 2 and 3 of House Bill 1426 for the 
following reasons: 

• The Department of Health is responsible for review and approval, prior to 

construction, of all projects involving water works, sewerage, and solid 
waste. These reviews are done to ensure that projects meet design 
standards. This is crucial to ensure system functionality and integrity, and 
to protect public health and the environment. Improperly designed or 
constructed facilities can fail, leading to loss of service and direct 
contamination of drinking water, groundwater or surface waters. 

• Based on the current threshold of $100,000, communities occasionally 
submit projects for review that have not been prepared by an engineer. 
We spend considerable time working with these communities to get their 
submittals in a form that satisfies design standards and can be quoted for 
construction purposes. Many times, communities realize that getting their 
submittal into an approvable condition is beyond their expertise and hire 
an engineer. This is inefficient and causes delays in project approval and 
construction. Increasing the threshold to $500,000 dollars will 

significantly exacerbate this situation as larger and more complex projects 
will be involved. This will add more work to already heavy workloads 
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• 

and delay approval of all projects. More projects may be rejected and not 
approved, leading to further delays and expense for communities. 

• The Department'.s role is to review and approve already-prepared projects 
to ensure that design standards are met, not to design projects. We are 
often asked and do provide design recommendations. However, we cannot 
both design and approve projects, as this represents a conflict of interest. 
To avoid conflict of interest, we may have to reject projects that do not 
initially meet design standards, which may result in project delays. 

• The proposed increased threshold could reduce funding assistance 
opportunities for communities. Funding assistance agencies typically 
require engineer involvement in public improvement projects. This is 
likely in recognition of their technical complexity and public health and 
safety implications. 

• Finally, engineers are uniquely equipped to prepare plans and 
specifications that meet design standards and that are sufficiently detailed 
for construction purposes. Over the last four years, we have experienced 
an increase from 150 to over 400 in the number of projects submitted for 
approval. Nearly all of these projects were prepared by engineers. This 
enabled timely review and approval. The proposed increased threshold 
has the potential to significantly reduce engineer involvement and our 
ability to approve projects in a timely manner. It also has the potential to 
impede needed public improvement projects statewide. 

The Department of Health takes its responsibility for public health, safety and 
environmental protection seriously. Keeping the current threshold of $100,000 
in place for engineer-prepared plans and specifications will allow us to do this. 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions you 
have atthis time. 
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NORTH DAKOTA UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
Facility Planning Department 
4349 James Ray Drive 
P.O. Box 13597 
Grand Forks, ND 58202 -3597 
701-777-4270 

House Education Committee, 2/03/15 

Rick Tonder, NOUS Director of Facilities Planning 

Chair and Members of the Committee: 

My name is Rick Tonder, NOUS Director of Facilities Planning, and I submit this testimony in 

opposition to H B1426 . .  This bill, as introduced, would  retain the current $100,000 competitive 

bidding req uirement limit, but increase the architectural/engineering services (AE services) limit 

from $100,000 to $500,000. Although I support a practical and a p propriate increase in the 

dol lar threshold  for req uiring AE services, this threshold should be the same as that for 

competitive bids in order to avoid confusion and to ensure competitive bid documents are 

prepared by a registered design professional 

This legis lative session there are several proposed amendments to N DCC 48-01.2 which modify 

the current bid ding req uirements or bidding threshold for public improvement projects. With 

consideration for the testimony provided by the broad range of constituents interested in 48-

01.2, it has become apparent there are significant implications related to even modest 

amendments of this statute. Therefore, we would be ha ppy to participate in any discussions 

with this legislative body and the many stakeholders regarding changes to N DCC 48-01.2 either 

during the legislative session or during the interim. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me regarding any questions you may have on this testimony. 

rick.tonder@ndus.edu 

701-777-4270 

The North Dakota University System is governed by the State Board of Higher Education and includes: 
Bismarck State College • Dakota College at Bottineau • Dickinson State University • Lake Region State College • Mayville 
State University • Minot State University • North Dakota State College of Science • North Dakota State University • 
University of North Dakota • Valley City State University• Williston State College. 



03 Feb 2015 
House Education Committee 
Testimony in opposition to of HB 1426 

Chairman Nathe and Members of the Committee : 

My name is Bonnie Staiger, Today I appear representing both the ACEC 
(American Council of Engineering Companies) and AIA North Dakota 
(American Institute of Architects) Each organization is requesting that you 
give this bill a Do Not Pass recommendation or in the alternative, amend the 
bill into an interim study so that further collaboration can occur among all 
stakeholders. 

HB 1426 is among, at last count, 8 assorted bills introduced which make 
widely disparate and uncoordinated changes to Chapter 48 and similar 
provisions to other chapters. Both organizations believe all these bills should 
be moved to an interim study thus allowing enough time to collaborate under 
the auspices of an interim committee. This would provide an alternative to 
having them pass or fail without the critical coordination of all stakeholders. 
We have consistently offered the same request for all these bills. 

For some background, I 'd like to take you through a short time-travel of how 
various industry groups have slogged their way through a history not unlike 
the Hatfields and McCoys which had pitted many (in this room today) against 
one another and evolving to an unprecedented level of collaboration on issues 
and a peaceful coexistence in Chapter 48. The undertaking started at the end 
of the 2005 session and represented the following design and construction 
industry organizations:  

• ACEC / ND (American Council of Engineering Companies) 
• AIA North Dakota 
• AGC (Associated General Contractors of ND) 
• National Electrical Contractors Association 
• ND Home Builders Association 
• ND Plumbing, Heating, and Mechanical Contractors Association 
• ND Society of Professional Engineers 

The coalition formed after a particularly contentious session dealing with 
procurement and delivery options. Out of desperation a mandatory interim 
study was passed. We came to the interim committee, chaired by Sen. Karen 
Krebsbach, offering to be a resource, partner with them and maybe if we were 
successful, help craft a bill draft that collectively we could support and would 
also protect the public trust and taxpayers of North Dakota. 

Her committee -all too familiar with The Great Construction Wars--was 
relieved by our offer and we did come up with a bill--which was no small feat 
because first we had to learn how to be in the same room together, then work 



through compromises to produce a work product that we could support in 
2007. 

During those 2 years, we met at least monthly and we created a culture of 
collaboration and frequently reported our progress to the interim committee. 
We also worked with many other groups representing public owners and 
agencies such as Board of Higher Ed, Fargo Public Schools-which at that 
time was the only K- 12 school district with much interest and experience in 
construction management. We also consulted with the Department of 
Transportation, the Office of Facilities Management, the Association of 
Counties, and through the interim committee we relied heavily on Legislative 
Council. 

The collaborative bill largely overhauled and streamlined the public 
procurement and project delivery section of the statutes. It has remained 
effective and for the most part unamended since then. 

So here we are in 20 15. HB 1426, like others introduced this session, 
attempts to arbitrarily raise the dollar threshold under which public works 
projects can be procured and constructed without certain triggers and 
bidding restrictions. Historically, a dollar threshold has always been the 
default determinant when in reality, today's world is more complicated than 
that factor alone. 

You have heard from some proponents that the threshold should be 
adjusted. While others disagree and say that it was raised too high. A few 
think even $ 1  of public money should be bid in order to to uphold the public 
trust and scrutiny. Playing devil's advocate : Isn't it usually the more 
conservative House of Representatives advocating for this fiscal 
accountability? 

In this context, public safety, public schools, and school children can't be 
wedged into an over-simplified cost commodity framework. Two examples 
that have been used recently to illustrate the issue : a large painting project 
could be over most suggested dollar thresholds yet a relatively inexpensive 
but faulty project could bring down the capitol tower. Should the pressures 
of expediency now override and overturn the critical role of protecting the 
public trust, the taxpayers, and life-safety? 

With great respect for Rep. Steiner, we ask for a do not pass on HB 1426 as 
introduced or-- if you should have an interest in amending the bill to defer 
these issues to an interim study -- I have provided potential language for 
your consideration. We believe the public / private collaboration can once 
again create solutions and that will again withstand the test of time. 



A BILL for an Act to provide for a legislative management study of public 

improvement issues relating to use of multiple bids versus single prime bids, 

bidding thresholds, design services thresholds, and indemnification. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. The legislative 

management shall consider studying public improvement issues relating to use 

of multiple bids versus single prime bids, bidding thresholds, design services 

thresholds, and indemnification. The legislative management shall report its 

findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to 

implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 

3 



� �  
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ACCESS. INNOVATION. EXCELLENCE. 

H B 1426 

NORTH DAKOTA UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
Facility Planning Department 
4349 James Ray Drive 
P.O. Box 13597 
Grand Forks, ND 58202 -3597 
701-777-4270 

Senate Education Committee, 3/04/15 

Rick Tonder, N DUS Director of Faci l ities P l a n n i ng 

Chair  a n d  Members of the Committee: 

My n a me is Rick Tonder, N DUS Director of Faci l it ies P lann ing, a n d  su bmit this testimony i n  

support o f  H B 1426 a s  e ngrossed by the House of Representatives. Although I bel ieve i t  prudent 

a nd practical to m a i nta in  both the threshold  for b idd ing construction of a publ ic  improvement 

a n d  the threshold for procuring plans, d rawings, and specifications for a p u bl ic  improvement 

from a design professional  at the same a mount; raising the threshol d  for the latter to $ 150,000 

is n ot u n m anageable for the N DUS. 

There a re currently severa l pro posed amendments to N DCC 48-01.2 which d irect the legislative 

counci l  to i m plement a n  i nterim study for the pu rpose of eva luating this a n d  other thresholds 

withi n  N DCC 48-01.2 and related statutes. I strongly su pport an interim study, and wou l d  be 

pleased to participate in that d iscussion .  

Please do not hesitate to contact me regarding a ny questions you may have on th is  testimony. 

rick.to n der@n dus.edu 

The North Dakota University System i s  governed by the State Board o f  Higher Education a n d  includes: 
Bismarck State College • Dakota College at Bottineau • Dickinson State University • Lake Region State College • Mayville 
State University • Minot State University • North Dakota State College of Science • North Dakota State University • 

University of North Dakota • Valley City State University • Williston State College. 
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CHAI RMAN FLAKOLL A N D  M E M BERS OF  TH E COM M ITIEE 

For the  record my name is B l ake Crosby. I a m  the Executive D i rector of  the North 

Da kota League of C it ies represent ing the 357 c it ies across the State. 

H B  1426 is  one of th ree b i l ls (H  B 1182 and SB  2246) sti l l  a l ive having to do  with b id 

thresho lds  for pub l i c  pu rchases and pub l ic improvement construction .  You wi l l  

hea r testimony on the pu b l ic  safety aspect and  jeopa rd i z ing of  the tax  payer's 

do l l a rs if the  th resho ld  were to be i ncreased beyond some a mou nt. And,  there i s  

va l id ity i n  the pu b l i c  safety concern .  However, re lative to protect ion of the tax 

payer' s  do l l a rs, I be l ieve that loca l ly e lected offic ia l s  act i n  the best i nterest of 

the i r  city a n d  they shou ld  be trusted u nt i l  p roven othe rwise . 

B id  th resho lds  i nhere ntly create confl ict .  They a re a cookie-cutter, one-size-fits­

a l l  response in a m u lt i-p iece e nvi ronment.  Based on the n u mber  of sessions  

where b id  thresho lds  conti nue  to  come to the forefront; there a re obviously some 

prob lems i n  the concept. 

I have some suggest ions on  a mendments: 

1)  I wou l d  recommend that HB 1426 be a mended to add  in Legis lative 

M a nagement study l a nguage as in H B  1182 (15.0486.02000) and  SB 2246 

(15.0672.02000) [copies attached ] . You may hear  testimony that some of 

the construct ion i ndustry fol ks got together i n  2005 to study the issue a nd 

offer amend ments to the 2007 Assembly. I ca n't say if that worked we l l  o r  

not, but  I w i l l  note that they d i d  reach out to  schools, cou nties, a nd N D DOT 

but they seem to have negl ected to i nc lude cit ies .  A l l  i nvolved part ies need 

to be a part of  the sol ution .  

• 2) I wou l d  a l so suggest a mend ing i n  Sect ion 48-01.2-02.1, re lat ing to the 

Pub l i c  I mprovement Construction threshold as  i n  SB  2246. This shou ld 

add ress concerns expressed by the N D  Depa rtment of Hea l th .  

'\ 6 
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3} And,  incl u d e  a me n d m e nts of Sections 11-11-26 a n d  11-11-27 as  i n  H B  1182 

which was a m ended to add ress concerns a bout  b ids for fue l  for cou nties .  

Amend ing a s  I have s uggested wou l d  conso l idate a l l  the common pieces of 

H B  1426, H B  1182 a n d  SB 2246 as they cu rrently stan d .  Everyone gets someth ing 

· a n d  I strongly e ncourage you r  support for the study so we can see if th is i ssue not 

com e  before you q u ite so regu la rly. 

On beha lf of the  N orth Dakota League of C ities, I wou ld ask  for a Do-Pass o n  

H B  1426 with the  a me n d m ents I suggested .  

THAN K YOU FOR YOU R  TIM E  A ND CONS I D E RATION .  I w i l l  t ry to a nswe r  any  

quest ions .  



• 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

• 
7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2 

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

• 22 

23 

24 

1 5 .0486.02000 FIRST ENGROSSMENT 
Sixty-fou rth 
Leg islative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 1 82 

I ntroduced by 

Representatives Mooney, Kelsh,  J .  Nelson, M .  Nelso n ,  Owens 

Senators Bowman,  S i n ner, Sorvaag 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 1 1 - 1 1 -26 and 1 1 -1 1 -27 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to bidding requi rements for public purchases; and to provide for a 

legislative management study. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 1 - 1 1 -26 of  the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 1 -1 1 -26. When board s hall  advertise for bids for fuel. 

E:xcept as provided in chapter 48 01.2, when the amount to be paid during the current year 

for the erection of county buildings or for election ballots and supplies exceeds ten thousand 

dollars, the board of county commissioners shall cause an advertisement for bids to be 

published at least once each •.veel< for two successive weel<s in the official newspaper of the 

county and in such other ne·Nspapers as it shall deem advisable. The first publication shall be 

made at least fifteen days before the day set for the opening of the bids. For the purchase of 

fuel when the amount exceeds four thousand dol lars, the board of county commissioners shall  

seek bids either by telephone solicitation from at least two suppl iers, or by an advertisement for 

bids to be publ ished at least once each week for two successive weeks in  the official newspaper 

of the county and in other newspapers as the board deems advisable. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 1 1 -1 1 -27 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 1 -1 1 -27. Contents of fuel bids advertisement - When bids may be opened - Lowest 

bidder accepted. 

The advertisement sflaHmust state what supplies a retype of fuel is required or where the 

plans and specifications may be examined, the time allov1ed for the completion of the 

examination, and when the bids will be opened and passed upon by the board of county 

-Page �<do. 4 1 5 .0486 .02000 
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S ixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

com missioners. The bids may be opened and passed upon at a regular o r  adjourned session of 

the board ,  o r  at a meetin g  called by the county auditor as provided in section 11-11-05. The bid 

of the lowest responsible bidder sftaHmust be accepted, but the board shall have po·.ver tomay 

reject any or al l  bids. 

SECTION 3. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 interim ,  the 

legislative management shall consider studyin g  public improvement issues relating to use of 

multiple bids versus single prime bids, bidding thresholds, design services thresholds, and 

indemnification.  The legislative management shall  report its findings and recommendations, 

together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth 

legislative assembly . 

.£a9e No.·2 15.0486.02000 
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15.0672.02000 FIRST E NGROSSMENT 

Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of N orth Dakota 

ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2246 

I ntroduced by 

Senators Klein,  Campbell ,  O'Connell 

Representatives Brandenburg ,  Pollert, Weisz 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sectio n  48-01.2-02.1 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relatin g  to the bidding threshold for plans and specifications for a public i mprovement 

contract; a n d  to provide for a legislative management study. 

BE IT E NACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY O F  NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTIO N  1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 48-01 .2-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as fol lows: · 

48-01 .2-02.1 .  P ubl ic i m p rovement construction threshold . 

The threshold for bidding construction of a public improvement is one hundred thousand 

dollars. The threshold for procuring plans, d rawings, and specifications from an architect or 

engineer for construction of a public improvement involving water works, sewerage. or solid 

waste is one hundred thousand dollars and for construction of other public improvement 

projects is one hundred fifty thousand dollars. 

SECTIO N  2. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2015-16 i nterim, the 

legislative management shall consider studyin g  public improvement issues relating to the use of 

multiple bids versus single prime bids, bidding thresholds, design services thresholds, and 

indemnification.  The legislative management shal l  report its findings and recommendations, 

together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations,  to the sixty-fifth 

legislative assembly. 

-!?age No. 1 15.0672.02000 
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NORTH DAKOTA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

Representative Vicky Steiner 
District 37 
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S u p po rt 1426 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

B ISMARCK, ND 58505-0360 

Good afternoon,  M r. C h a i r m a n  F lakol l  a n d  Mem bers of Senate Ed ucation, 

M y  n a me is  Vicky Ste i n e r, State Rep resentative for District 37, Dicki nso n .  

COMMITTEES: 
Finance and Taxation 

Government and Veterans Affairs 

March 4, 20 1 5  

H B  1426 i ncreases the t h reshold for b i d d i n g  from $100,000 to $150,000 to recogn ize t h at h a rd n u m bers i n  

code n eed t o  b e  a dj u sted over t ime.  

h e  H ouse h e a r ing, the specia l  i nterests were i nterested i n  protect i n g  their  m arket s h a re so we lowered t h e  

t h reshold to $150,000. A b u s  b a rn from dea lers can be pre-engi neered. Why s p e n d  m oney for a d d iti o n a l  

engineeri n g  o n  a p roject? 

O n e  of t h e  a rg u m e nts on the H ouse hear ing was about p u b l ic safety a n d  how a h igher n u m ber m i ght  i m p a ct 

p u b l i c  safety. Loca l  e lected offic ia ls  a re j u st as concerned a bout safety as we a re .  If they be l ieve t h ey n eed to 

spend m o n ey on a d d it i o n a l  engi n eer ing and or an a rch itect, they ca n .  They've been e lected just l ike  us .  

We c a n 't leave n u m bers to r ide i n  o u r  law books beca use it sta rts to cost u s  as  taxpayers. I t 's  s imply  com mo n  

sense to u pd ate the n u m ber of $100,000. The b i l l  sta rts i t  a t  $150,000. I wou l d  support a h igher d o l l a r  

a mo u nt but i t  m et with resista n ce i n  the House hearing.  

Agai n ,  th is  gives local  offic ia ls  t h e  chance to m a ke their  own d ecision o n  wheth er  an e n gineer  and a rch itect 

m ight be h i red at cert a i n  levels .  Th is gives some parameters to the local  elected offic ia ls .  

We n eed to be vigi l a nt on how we,  as  legislators, i m pact loca l  property tax so we s h o u ld not m a n d ate th is  

cost to schools b ased o n  a n  outdated n u mber.  

Th a n k  you, M r. C h a i r m a n  and mem bers of the comm ittee, for you r  consideration of th is  b i l l .  



04 Mar 2015 
Senate Education Committee 
Testimony in opposition to of HB 1426 

Chairman Flakoll and Members of the Committee:  

My name is Bonnie Staiger, Today I appear representing both the ACEC 
(American Council of Engineering Companies) and AIA North Dakota 
(American Institute of Architects) Each organization is requesting that you 
give this bill a Do Not Pass recommendation or in the alternative , amend the 
bill into an interim study so that further collaboration can occur among all 
stakeholders . 

HB 1426 is among, at last count, 8 assorted bills introduced which make 
widely disparate and uncoordinated changes to Chapter 48 and similar 
provisions to other chapters . Both organizations believe all these bills should 
be moved to an interim study thus allowing enough time to collaborate under 
the auspices of an interim committee. This would provide an alternative to 
having them pass or fail without the critical coordination of all stakeholders . 
We have consistently offered the same request for all these bills .  

For some background, I 'd like to take you through a short time-travel of how 
various industry groups have slogged their way through a history not unlike 
the Hatfields and McCoys which had pitted many (in this room today) against 
one another and evolving to an unprecedented level of collaboration on issues 
and a peaceful coexistence in Chapter 48. The undertaking started at the end 
of the 2005 session and represented the following design and construction 
industry organizations:  

• ACEC / ND (American Council of Engineering Companies) 
• AIA North Dakota 
• AGC (Associated General Contractors of ND) 
• National Electrical Contractors Association 
• ND Home Builders Association 
• ND Plumbing, Heating, and Mechanical Contractors Association 
• ND Society of Professional Engineers 

The coalition formed after a particularly contentious session dealing with 
procurement and delivery options .  Out of desperation a mandatory interim 
study was passed . We came to the interim committee, chaired by Sen. Karen 
Krebsbach,  offering to be a resource, partner with them and maybe if we were 
successful,  help craft a bill draft that collectively we could support and would 
also protect the public trust and taxpayers of North Dakota. 

Her committee -all too familiar with The Great Construction Wars--was 
relieved by our offer and we did come up with a bill--which was no small feat 
because first we had to learn how to be in the same room together, then work 
through compromises to produce a work product that we could support in 
2007. 



During those 2 years , we met at least monthly and we created a culture of 
collaboration and frequently reported our progress to the interim committee . 
We also worked with many other groups representing public owners and 
agencies such as Board of Higher Ed, Fargo Public Schools-which at that 
time was the only K- 12 school district with much interest and experience in 
construction management. We also consulted with the Department of 
Transportation, the Office of Facilities Management, the Association of 
Counties, and through the interim committee we relied heavily on Legislative 
Council. 

The collaborative bill largely overhauled and streamlined the public 
procurement and project delivery section of the statutes. It has remained 
effective and for the most part unamended since then. 

So here we are in 20 15. HB 1426, like others introduced this session, 
attempts to arbitrarily raise the dollar threshold under which public works 
projects can be procured and constructed without certain triggers and 
bidding restrictions. Historically, a dollar threshold has always been the 
default determinant when in reality, today's world is more complicated than 
that factor alone. 

You have heard from some proponents that the threshold should be adjusted 
while others disagree and say that it was raised too high. A few think even $ 1  
of public money should be bid in order to uphold the public trust and 
scrutiny. 

In this context, public safety, public schools, and school children can't be 
wedged into an over-simplified cost commodity framework. Two examples 
that have been used recently to illustrate the issue : a large painting project 
could cost more than $ 150K threshold in this engrossed bill yet a relatively 
inexpensive but improperly built project could result in serious injury or loss 
of life .  Ultimately, we ask: Should the notion of expediency now override and 
overturn the critical role of protecting the public trust, the taxpayers, and 
life-safety? 

With great respect for Rep. Steiner, we ask for a do not pass on HB 1426 as 
introduced or-- if you should have an interest in amending the bill to defer 
these issues to an interim study -- I have provided potential language for 
your consideration. We believe the public/ private collaboration can once 
again create solutions and that will again withstand the test of time. 

Overview of several bills dealing with this issue this session: 

Interim Study Included 

HB 1 1 82 (Mooney) 

SB 2233 (Dever) 

SB 2246 (Klein) 

Defeated 

HB 1 077 (Trottier) 

SB 2203 (Laffen) 



t 
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LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 20 1 5-1 6 interim,  the legislative 

m anagement shal l  consider studying public i mprovement issues relating to use of m ultiple bids 

versus single prime bids , bidding thresholds, design services thresholds , and indemnification.  

The legislative management shall  report its findings and recommendations, together with any 

legislation required to i m plement the recommendations,  to the sixty-fifth legislative assembly. 



Testimony 
House Bill  1 426 

Senate Education Committee 
March 4, 201 5; 1 1 : 1 5  a.m. 

North Dakota Department of Health 

Good morning, Chairman Flakoll and members of the Senate Education 
Committee. My name is Wayne Kern. I am Director of the North Dakota 
Department of Health's  Division of Municipal Facil ities, which is part of the 
Environmental Health Section. I am here to provide testimony in opposition to 
Sections 2 and 3 of engrossed House Bi l l  1 426. 

Under current state law, public works and public improvement projects costing 
over $ 1 00,000 cannot proceed to construction without engineer-prepared plans 
and specifications.  Sections 2 and 3 of engrossed House Bil l  1 426 propose to 
increase thi s  threshold amount to $ 1 50,000. I f  engrossed House B i l l  1 426 is 
enacted, the state and its political subdivisions would be al lowed to undertake 
public works and public improvement proj ects up to $ 1 50,000 without engineer­
prepared plans and specifications. 

The Department of Health opposes Sections 2 and 3 of engrossed House B i l l  
1 426 fo r  the fo l lowing reasons : 

• The Department of Health is  responsible for review and approval, prior to 
construction, of al l public works and public improvement proj ects 
involving water works, sewerage, and solid waste. These reviews are done 
to ensure that projects meet design standards .  This  is crucial to ensure 
system functional ity and integrity, and to protect public health and the 
environment. I mproperly designed or constructed faci lities can fail,  
leading to loss of service and direct contamination of drinking water, 
groundwater or surface waters. 

• Based on the current threshold of $ 1 00,000, communities occasional ly 
submit proj ects for review that have not been prepared by an engineer. 
We spend considerable time working with these communities to get their 
submittals in  a form that satisfies design standards and can be quoted for 
construction purposes. Many times, communities realize that getting their 
submittal into an approvable condition is beyond their expertise and hire 
an engineer. This  is inefficient and causes delays in project approval and 
construction. I ncreasing the threshold to $ 1 50,000 dol l ars wil l  exacerbate 
this s ituation as larger and more complex proj ects wil l  be involved. This 



wi ll  add more work to already heavy workloads and delay approval of all  
proj ects. More projects may be rej ected and not approved, leading to 
further delays and expense for communities. 

• The Department' s role is  to review and approve already-prepared projects 
to ensure that design standards are met, not to design proj ects .  We are 
often asked and do provide design recommendations . However, we cannot 
both design and approve projects, as this represents a con fl ict of interest. 
To avoid conflict of interest, we may have to reject proj ects that do not 
initial ly meet design standards, which may result in proj ect delays. 

• The proposed increased threshold could reduce funding assistance 
opportunities for communities.  Funding assistance agencies typically 
require engineer involvement in public works and publ ic improvement 
proj ects . This is l ikely in recognition of their technical complexity and 
public health and safety i mp lications. 

• F inal ly, engineers are uniquely equipped to prepare plans and 
speci fications that meet design standards and that are sufficiently detailed 
for construction purposes. Over the last four years, we have experienced 
an increase from 1 50 to over 400 in the number of proj ects submitted each 
year for approval . Nearly al l  of these projects were prepared by engineers . 
This enabled timely review and approval . The proposed increased 
threshold has the potential to further reduce engineer i nvolvement and our 
abi lity to approve projects i n  a timely manner. It also has the potential to 
impede needed public improvement projects statewide. 

The Department takes its responsibi lity for public health, safety and 
environmental protection seriously. The current threshold of $ 1 00,000 for 
engineer-prepared plans and specifications allows us to do thi s .  

It  i s  important to note that the current design services threshold of $ 1 00,000 
resulted from legislation introduced in 2007. The legislation came from an 
interim study committee that used a collaborative process involving input from a 
broad array of stakeholders. 

S everal  bi l ls  have been introduced thi s  session proposing changes to the design 
services threshold as wel l  as other current requirements pertaining to public 
i mprovement projects. These changes need to be coordinated and further 
evaluated as to their consequences.  Deferring these issues to an interim study 
would enable time to thoroughly evaluate current requirements and collaborate 



• 

• 

• 

with stakeholders on changes. The result could be one bill draft that addresses 
and balances pertinent issues and has stakeholder support. 

In summary, the Department opposes S ections 2 and 3 of engrossed House Bill 
1 426. The Department proposes that the bill be amended to replace these 
Sections with a new Section that requires an interim legislative management 
study. The study would address current state law requirements for public 
improvement projects including the design services threshold. 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions you 
have at this time . 



From: Bonnie Staiger Hon. AIA [mailto:bonnie@bis.midco.net] 
Sent: Friday, March 06, 2015 6 :41 AM 
To: Flakoll, Tim � Subject: Clarify Testimony o�- Bidding Thresholds 

• Senate Education Committee 

• Rep. Steiner 

• Rep .  Trottier 

Clarification for my testimony in opposition to of HB 1426 
(Thresholds for bidding public projects) 

Chairman Flakoll and Members of the Committee:  
I ask for a moment of your time to clarify my response to a question 
during the hearing concerning architecture and/ or engineering fees. 
Fees for a project in which only the design is required are considerably 
less than fees for professional services through the full life of a project 
which can include project development, cost estimating, design, 
preparation of plans, specifications & bid documents, bidding/ contract 
negotiation, construction observation and construction contract 
administration.  A political subdivision generally negotiates the scope of 
services and fees with the architect/ engineer based on the needs of the 
political subdivision, which can be dictated by the funding agency, 
regulatory agency, laws & regulations, etc. 

As always, thanks for your time. Please feel free to stop me in the halls 
or if you wish to call my office: 22 3-3 1 84 

"B0\1\-\1\-Le stciLger 
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